—
QWO NO O, OWN -~

A A DDA BEABRADOOWWOWWWWWWWNDNDNDNDDNDNDNDDNDDNDNDN=2 =22 O A A A A
OO PP, WON-_2 000N, WON-_00O0O0ONOODOPPWON-_OCCOONOOOOPRWN -~

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday June 16th, 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

Members Present: Members Absent:
Dr. Michael Klemens (Chair)
Cathy Shyer (Vice Chair)
Martin Whalen (Secretary)

Allen Cockerline (Regular Member) Staff Present
Bob Riva (Regular Member) Abby Conroy, Land Use Director (LUD)
Dr. Danella Schiffer (Alternate Member) Miles Todaro, Land Use Technical Specialist (LUTS)

Beth Wells (Alternate Member)

Brief Items and Announcements

1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum

Chair Klemens called the meeting to order at 6:30PM. A quorum was established with five regular
members present (Dr. Michael Klemens, Cathy Shyer, Martin Whalen, Allen Cockerline, Bob Riva).
Alternate Members Dr. Danella Schiffer and Beth Wells were also present.

2. Approval of the Agenda

Motion: To approve the agenda.
Made by Riva, seconded by Cockerline.
Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

3. Minutes of May 5, 2025
The Commission edited the detailed minutes of May 5, 2025.

Motion: To approve minutes of May 5, 2025 as amended.
Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva.
Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

4. Minutes of May 19, 2025 - pending
5. Minutes of June 2, 2025 - pending

6. Public Comment: Public Comment is restricted to items that are neither on the agenda nor the subject
of any pending Planning & Zoning Commission application or action and are limited to three minutes per

person.

Elyse Harney joined the meeting and wished to comment on agenda item #13, “Position Statement
Regarding Commission Meeting Format.” Chair Klemens explained that public comment is restricted to
items that are not on the agenda. He also commented that the Commission will vote on agenda item 13
without further adjustments. Ms. Harney asked what the public can do if they object to the
Commission’s vote. Chair Klemens replied a letter can be written to the Land Use Office (LUO) or legal
action could be pursued. He noted that the Commission has taken public comments about in-person
meetings into serious consideration and investigated resources and logistics.

Lori Shepard and Victor Germack expressed objection to the one-way traffic closure that would occur on
Route 112 near Lime Rock Park for six hours on June 27 & 28, 2025 to accommodate Lime Rock Park’s
NASCAR event. Mr. Germack believed the closure could be problematic and a disadvantage to the



47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
95
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
7
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday June 16th, 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone
community. Chair Klemens said Lime Rock Park received approval from the Department of
Transportation (DOT) and hosted two special meetings with the Board of Selectman for approval of the
closure.

New Business

7.4#2025-3776 / David Patcher (Tim Sneller) / 136 Long Pond Road / Special Permit Application for
Detached Accessory Apartment on Single Family Residential Lot (Section 208) / Map 02 / Lot 12 / DOR:
06/16/2025 / Reception and Possible Scheduling of Public Hearing

Chair Klemens explained the application involved a request for a detached accessory apartment and
presented the submitted plans. LUD Conroy added that a narrative was not provided to explain
compliance with the Zoning Regulations. Chair Klemens suggested tabling the application to a future
meeting after a narrative is received. The Commission agreed.

Pending Business

8. #2025-0287 / Wake Robin LLC & Ms. Serena Granbery (ARADEV LLC) / 104 & 106 Sharon Road & 53
Wells Hill Road / Special Permit for Hotel Redevelopment of the Wake Robin Inn (Section 213.5) / Map
47 / Lot 2 & 2-1 / DOR: 05/05/2025 / Open Hearing by 07/09/2025 / Possibly Schedule Public Hearing

Chair Klemens explained an extension request was received and approved for a public hearing. He
suggested the public hearing be scheduled for August 5, 2025 at 6:45PM via Zoom. LUD Conroy added
that public hearings for this application would be scheduled as special meetings on Tuesdays.

Motion: To schedule a public hearing for application #2025-0287 / Wake Robin LLC & Ms. Serena
Granbery (ARADEV LLC) / 104 & 106 Sharon Road & 53 Wells Hill Road / Special Permit for Hotel
Redevelopment of the Wake Robin Inn (Section 213.5) / Map 47 / Lot 2 & 2-1 / on August 5, 2025 at
6:30PM via Zoom.

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva.

Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

9. #2025-0289 / Kenneth & Elizabeth Burdick (Haley Ward - Parsons) / 152 South Shore Road / Remove
Existing House and Construct New Single Family Residence, Septic System, and Driveway in the Lake
Protection Overlay District (Section 404) / Map 60 / Lot 17 / DOR: 06/02/2025 / Possible Consideration

Engineer Todd Parsons of Haley Ward Engineering presented the application. Chair Klemens explained
the applicant has returned with a response to the Commission’s request for a more permeable driveway.
Mr. Parsons presented a site plan of the 0.51-acre lot and explained they proposed to demolish an
existing house and garage, and construct a new house, garage, septic system and driveway. He also
commented that approval was received from Torrington Area Health District (TAHD) and the Inland
Wetlands & Watercourses Commission (IWW(C).

Mr. Parsons pointed out that an elevated cobblestone curb was added to the project on a downhill slope
to resist erosion of a sandy sitting area during rainfall. He also noted that the planting plan consisted of
native species, not cultivars. Mr. Parsons explained the parking area of the proposed driveway with less
than five percent slope was converted to permeable pavement. He explained these plans result in an
impervious surface coverage decrease from 25.5 percent to 18.8 percent.



93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday June 16th, 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

Vice Chair Shyer expressed concern approving an application in the Lake Protection Overlay District
(LPOD) with impervious surface above the required ten percent maximum. She appreciated the
decreased impervious surface coverage and acknowledged the lot’s small size. Vice Chair Shyer noted
that non-conforming improvements have been approved by the Commission in the past, but this
application involved a new build. LUD Conroy commented that the proposed structure would be moved
and complied with all yard setbacks.

Chair Klemens believed reduced non-conformity of impervious surface and eliminating setback non-
conformities was a positive change to the property. Commissioner Riva understood Vice Chair Shyer’s
concern but believed the application should be approved. Secretary Whalen agreed. Alternate Member
Schiffer shared Vice Chair Shyer’s concern and asked if the Commission had criteria when choosing to
circumvent the Regulations. Chair Klemens disagreed that the regulations were being circumvented. LUD
Conroy explained the applicant could go to the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) who would be required to
issue a variance on the basis of non-conformity reduction without needing to prove hardship. Alternate
Member Wells believed the Applicant made a reasonable effort to reduce non-conformity and
supported approval. Commissioner Cockerline was comfortable with approval. Chair Klemens asked Mr.
Parsons if he wished to continue the application or withdraw to apply to ZBA. Mr. Parsons opted to
proceed.

Motion: To approve application #2025-0289 / Kenneth & Elizabeth Burdick (Haley Ward - Parsons) / 152
South Shore Road / Remove Existing House and Construct New Single Family Residence, Septic System,
and Driveway in the Lake Protection Overlay District (Section 404) / Map 60 / Lot 17 / with reduced
impervious surface from 25.5% to 18%, reduced setback non-conformity and new septic system.

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva.

Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

Other Business
10. Discussion of Tent Permits, Events, and Venues. Possible Section 906 Authorization for Temporary
Zoning Permits 112 & 138 Housatonic River Road and 38 Main Street.

LUD Conroy said the LUO received applications for tents that she was not comfortable approving
administratively. She explained the White Hart Inn (WHI) had a wedding event scheduled with a
proposed outdoor tent at WHI that encroached on Town-owned property. An additional tent associated
with the same event was applied for at the Scoville Memorial Library. Business Owner Brittany Sherwood
of Tents Unlimited explained the Applicant planned to perform the wedding ceremony at a library
because the mother of the groom was a lifelong librarian. A donation would be made to the Library and
the ceremony would not occur during open business hours. She explained a small “Insurance” Tent
would be utilized outside of the library in the event of rain. They were not aware of encroachment
concerns at WHI when submitting the application. Ms. Sherwood asked the Commission how to proceed.
Chair Klemens suggested Ms. Sherwood relocate the proposed tent onto WHI property and apply for a
Temporary Zoning Permit for the wedding ceremony at the Library. He believed providing a donation to
the Library could be viewed as an extension of fundraising. Chair Klemens asked where the ceremony
would occur on the property. Ms. Sherwood replied outside, behind the Library next to the parking lot.
Commissioner Cockerline commented the Library had hosted book sales with tents erected behind the
building. He supported use of tents on personal property for intimate gatherings, but was opposed to



139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday June 16th, 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone
use as a commercial venue. He believed the application should be approved as a ceremony only without
music. Commissioner Riva expressed hesitance to approve a wedding event at the Library as to avoid
setting a precedent. Chair Klemens believed disallowing an already scheduled wedding would be
inappropriate, but advised this process should not be authorized in the future.

Motion: To authorize LUA to issue a Temporary Zoning Permit for this one-off ceremony event at 38
Main Street, Scoville Memorial Library.

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Whalen.

Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

Chair Klemens directed attention to the next tent question regarding a property on Housatonic River
Road with a barn being used as an event facility. Dr. Klemens believed the structure was built under a
potentially false pretense of agricultural use. LUD Conroy explained venues are only permitted as a
customary and incidental use to hotels and motels. There are currently no agritourism Regulations
established. Chair Klemens explained he discussed concerns of fire code violations with the Fire Marshal
and they concluded only a small number of guests can be safely accommodated within the barn
structure.

Commissioner Cockerline expressed that he believed the barn only hosted private parties and is not a
commercial venue. LUD Conroy explained tickets can be purchased by the public for the events.
Commissioner Cockerline replied that the parties are considered private when tickets are purchased to
support a charity. Ms. Sherwood commented their client won use of the venue through a raffle, and
money would not be exchanged for use of the space. Alternate Member Schiffer believed clarification
was needed to identify what kind of events would be hosted. Chair Klemens agreed. Chair Klemens also
reminded the Commission the reason for the barn’s construction may have been a misrepresentation,
and stressed the importance of public safety with potential fire code violations. Ms. Sherwood suggested
the guests could be moved to an outdoor only event with a larger tent. Chair Klemens asked when the
event was scheduled. Ms. Sherwood replied July 5, 2025. Alternate Member Schiffer suggested
approving the application with limitations set by the Fire Marshal, and alternate arrangements should be
made if the event would exceed those limits.

Commissioner Cockerline expressed favor for issuing a temporary Zoning Permit. Alternate Member
Schiffer expressed support for a Temporary Zoning Permit pending Fire Marshal approval. LUD Conroy
noted that Temporary Zoning Permits can be conditioned, and asked the Commission if they had any
thoughts on potential conditions. Alternate Member Wells suggested stopping music at 10:00PM. Chair
Klemens was not comfortable with that condition and suggested the Commission host further discussion
with the property owners to evaluate how to proceed with future listed events. Vice Chair Shyer
commented that there do not seem to have been any complaints from the neighbors about the events.
LUD Conroy noted that the LUO did receive an email with concerns from a neighbor that was not shared
with the Commission since the discussion is not a public hearing. Commissioner Riva expressed concern
since a similar request for an event barn on a farm in Lakeville was turned away recently.

Motion: To authorize the Land Use Administrator to issue a temporary Zoning Permit pursuant to sec-
tion 906 of the Zoning Regulations for a ceremony at 112&138 Housatonic River Road, with the under-
standing that this is a one-time approval and the owners will discuss outlying issues with the Planning

and Zoning Commission. This authorization was subject to the following condition:



185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday June 16th, 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone
1. Approval by the Fire Marshal and the Building Inspector must be obtained.
Made by Cockerline seconded by Riva.
Vote: 5-0-0

11. Update on Comprehensive Zoning Regulation Rewrite

LUD Conroy explained she will begin working on comprehensive Zoning Regulation changes after July 1,
2025. There are several issues and questions about interpreting some Regulations. She explained an
interim stop gap was proposed to address confusion related to definitions, buildings, structures, yard
setbacks and easements. LUD Conroy asked if Chair Klemens should be financially compensated for his
work on Regulation adjustments. All Commission members replied yes.

12. Possible Adoption of Survey Completeness Checklist

LUD Conroy presented and reviewed the Survey Completeness Checklist to the Commission. All
Commissioners were comfortable with the document.

Motion: To adopt the Salisbury Planning & Zoning Commission existing conditions and As-Built Survey
Requirements dated May 15, 2025.

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva.

Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

13. Position Statement Regarding Commission Meeting Format

Chair Klemens presented a Position Statement which showed an analysis and conclusion as a result of
feedback provided by Commissioners. He explained that many Commissioners travel for work or
personal matters, and attendees may be lost if meetings were hosted only in-person. He added that
remote meetings have increased public participation and provided the ability to watch meeting
recordings whenever desired. He estimated that two additional full-time employment positions in the
LUO would be required to hold in-person or hybrid meetings. Chair Klemens stated meetings are run
more efficiently in a remote format.

Motion: To approve the Position Statement Concerning Public Meeting Formats dated June 16, 2025 for
the Town of Salisbury Planning and Zoning Commission.

Made by Riva, seconded by Cockerline.

Vote: 4-1-0 in favor with Commissioner Whalen opposing.

Adjournment
Motion: To adjourn the meeting at 8:37PM.

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva.
Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

Respectfully Submitted,
Erika Spino



SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday June 16th, 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone
231  Secretary of Minutes



